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Assessment of the Financial Position and Performance of 

the Chosen Companies Operating in the Sale and 

Distribution of ICT Products in Vietnam 

 

 

Abstract 

The objective of this thesisiis to evaluate the financial standing of Mobile World Investment 

Joint Stock Company and FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company, which are both involved 

in the sale and distribution of ITiproducts in Vietnam. The purpose is to detect any potential 

financial issues by analyzing and comparing theifinancial position and performance of these 

companies over aiperiod of time. Toiaccomplish this, their financial statements will be 

scrutinized and changes in their assets, iliabilities, expenses, and revenues will be tracked. 

The primary data collection method for this research will be secondary data. The analysis 

will be derived from publicly available financial data that is published by the companies on 

their official websites. The majority of the data is in PDF format, which will be converted 

into Excel for easier and more flexible analysis. Once the raw and processed data is 

obtained, relevant financial metrics will be used to conduct various types of analysis, such 

as vertical and horizontal analysis and ratio analysis. Profitability ratio, operating ratio, 

liquidity analysis, and leverage analysis will also be included in the thesis to evaluate the 

companies' financial positions. 

To evaluate the companies' financial positions and performances, their income statements 

and balance sheets fromi2018 to 2022 will be analyzed. The dataiwill be obtained from their 

annual audited financial statements. Theiliterature review for this thesis will include the 

definitions of vertical and horizontal analysis, asiwell as the formulas for the selected 

financial analysis ratios. 

Keywords: financial statements, financial position, balance sheet, assets, liabilities, equity, 

financial performance, income statement, expenses, revenues, profit, financial analysis, ICT 

retail industry, ICT products, sales, and distribution. 
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Posouzení finanční situace a výkonnosti vybraných 

společností působících v oblasti prodeje a distribuce ICT 

produktů ve Vietnamu 

 

 

Abstrakt 

Cílem této práce je zhodnotit finanční situaci společností Mobile World Investment Joint 

Stock Company a FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company, které se podílejí na prodeji a 

distribuci IT produktů ve Vietnamu. Účelem je odhalit případné finanční problémy analýzou 

a porovnáním finanční situace a výkonnosti těchto společností za určité časové období. Za 

tímto účelem budou jejich účetní závěrky zkontrolovány a budou sledovány změny jejich 

aktiv, pasiv, výdajů a výnosů. 

Primární metodou sběru dat pro tento výzkum budou sekundární data. Analýza bude 

odvozena z veřejně dostupných finančních údajů, které společnosti zveřejňují na svých 

oficiálních webových stránkách. Většina dat je ve formátu PDF, který bude převeden do 

Excelu pro snadnější a flexibilnější analýzu. Jakmile jsou získána nezpracovaná a 

zpracovaná data, příslušné finanční metriky budou použity k provádění různých typů analýz, 

jako je vertikální a horizontální analýza a analýza poměru. V práci bude také zahrnut poměr 

ziskovosti, provozní poměr, analýza likvidity a analýza pákového efektu pro vyhodnocení 

finanční pozice společností. 

Pro vyhodnocení finanční pozice a výkonnosti společností budou analyzovány jejich výkazy 

zisku a ztráty a rozvahy od roku 2018 do roku 2022. Údaje budou získány z jejich roční 

auditované účetní závěrky. Přehled literatury pro tuto práci bude zahrnovat definice 

vertikální a horizontální analýzy, jakož i vzorce pro vybrané ukazatele finanční analýzy. 

 

Klíčová slova: finanční výkazy, finanční situace, rozvaha, aktiva, pasiva, vlastní kapitál, 

finanční výkonnost, výkaz zisku a ztráty, výdaje, výnosy, zisk, finanční analýza, 

maloobchod ICT, produkty ICT, prodej a distribuce. 
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1 Introduction 

Finance is a primary aspect affecting a business's abilitycto develop and survive. Businesses 

have to deal with many challenges and difficultiescin a market economy with constant 

changes and increasing competitioncamong different sectors. Every firm must thoroughly 

understand itscproduction and businesscoutcomes, especially its financial position if they 

want to maintain and grow itscposition in the market. Financial statementcanalysis can help 

managers identify the benefitscand drawbacks of the company, including its operational 

performance, financial stability, liquidity, and solvency, amongcother things. With the help 

of this information, managersccan create the best policies and plans to improve the owners' 

financial security and increasecthe value of their assets. Financialcstatement analysis also 

provides valuable informationcfor other stakeholders, such as investors, creditors, suppliers, 

customers, employees, and governmentcagencies. Investors can knowledgeablycselect their 

investments. Creditors cancevaluate the company's ability to repay its debts. Suppliers and 

customers can ensure that the company will honor its obligations. Governmentcagencies can 

support and facilitate theccompany's business activitiescwhile regulating them according to 

the law. 

The assessment of financialcstatements is crucial for analyzing theccompany's present 

financialcposition, which is necessary for makingcfinancial decisions andcpreparing for 

what is to come. cIn this master thesis, cthe author will evaluatecthe financial position and 

performance of chosen ICT sales andcdistribution company in Vietnam, one of the leading 

markets in thiscindustry. The author will do a case studycof two top-performing companies 

in this ICT retail industry. 
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2 Objectives and Methodology 

2.1 Objectives 

This thesis aims tocevaluate and compare the financial positioncand performance of two 

significant ICT retail companiescin Vietnam. A studycof their financial statementscwill be 

used tocfocus on how their assets, liabilities, expenses, and revenues are handled over a 

specific time frame. cAdditionally, cfrom a company and industrycperspective, the research 

will investigatechow the companies recognize and address potential financial issues and 

significant factors that influence their profitability. 

Because of the unpredictable socioeconomiccclimate followingcthe Covid-19 epidemic, 

financial analysis has becomecessential for companies that want tockeep or improve their 

financial stability andcreduce their risk potential. Severalcfirms are failing to owe to limited 

financial resources or bad planning, which maycresult in insolvency. By predicting future 

financial ratios, the financial analysiscmay have included avoiding or mitigating such 

problems. 

This thesis topic's importance is highlighted by theccurrent business environment, andcthe 

study focuses on two significantcbusinesses in the ICT retail market in Vietnam: FPT Digital 

Retail Joint Stock Company and MobilecWorld Investment Corporation. The analysis 

covers the period from 2018 to 2022. By examiningcthese companies' financial positions 

and performance, this studychopes to find ways tocincrease their financial stability and 

sustainability. 

The study must address the following research questions in order to reach the research 

objectives: 

• What potential financialcproblems may thecselected firms face? 

• What are thecinternal and external factors thatcaffect the company's profitability? 

• What stepsiand suggestions cancbe made to lessen the negative effect on the financial 

performancecof the chosen companies? 

This research aims tocdevelop ways to improve the financial stabilityiand liquidity of these 

companies based on a reviewcof their financial parameters.  

2.2 Methodology 

The literature study procedure involvesiobtaining data from relevant regulations, specialist 

publications, and other online or printed sources. In the practicalipart of the thesis, 
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information from certain firms' annualireports will be used. The financial position and 

performance of the company willibe looked at using vertical and horizontal analysis, ratio 

analysis ofifinancial statements, and preparationifor the practical part of the thesis. The 

thesis results will be developed throughianalysis, synthesis, comparison, and deduction. 

Dueito the limiteditime to discloseifinancial statements, the thesis dataiwas obtained from 

the consolidated financial statements of FPT DigitaliRetail Joint Stock Company and Mobile 

World Investment Corporation, which were prepared according to VietnameseiAccounting 

Standards (VAS) for five yearsifrom 2018 to 2022. Iniaddition, financialistatements are 

analyzed alongside specialist books, relevantiregulations, and internet resources. 

The practical part of this method isiusing vertical and horizontal analysis and financial ratios 

based on financial statements toicompare differenticompanies' financial positions and 

performance. Using vertical andihorizontal analysis and financial ratios derived from 

financial statementsito analyze the financialiposition and performance of chosenicompanies 

is the practicalipart of this approach. The analyzedidata is put into tables and charts showing 

the ratios calculated from financialistatements to compare companies' financial positions and 

performances. Using vertical and horizontal analysisiand financial ratios derivedifrom 

financial statementsito analyze the financial position andiperformance of different 

companies is the practical part of this approach.  The data analyzed is presented in suitable 

tables and charts to illustrate the events. iThe results of the calculations are vital for 

researching and comparing the financial position and performance of the two selected 

companies, which will assist the author in identifyingipotential financial issues and theimost 

influential elements affecting profitability. Theiauthor concludes with ideas for future 

business development. iThe results of the calculationsiare essential for researching and 

comparing the financial position and performance of the twoiselected companies, which will 

help the author identify potential financial problems and the most significant factors that 

affect profitability. Finally, the author provides recommendations for further business 

development. 
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3 Literature Review 

3.1 Vietnam accounting system 

(Hung, 2015) says that”the Vietnamese accounting system has come a long way since 2003 

in terms of quality and quantity.”This growth has been driven by the acceptance of 

International Accounting Standards (IASs) andithe needs of a market economy. This has led 

to the creation of an accounting law framework iniVietnam and its gradual strengthening. 

The four tiers ofithis legal structure are accounting legislation, decrees, accounting 

standards, and decisions and circulars. 

Vietnam's accounting law framework wasibuilt and is kept up by the NationaliAssembly, 

the Ministry of Finance, the Directorateiof Accounting and Auditing Policy, and the Vietnam 

Accounting Standards Board. TheiNational Assembly of Vietnam passed the Accounting 

Law, which gave the Ministry of Finance essential responsibilities for regulating 

accounting.  

(Dung, Dinh, & Ming, 2012) and (Hung, 2015) describe“the Vietnamese accounting legal 

framework's hierarchical nature as symbolized by a pyramid, with accounting law at the top 

and circulars at the bottom. The lower documents are used to provide clarification for the 

higher ones.” 

During the period from 2003 to 2015, the Vietnamese National Assembly promulgated 

accounting laws twice, iin 2003 and 2015. In addition, the MOF issuedi16 Vietnamese 

Accounting Standards (VASs) to adapt toiinternational economic integration and harmonize 

with IASs. The third package of VASs was established based on Decision No.234/2003/QD-

BTC. 

According to (Hung, 2015), “even though Vietnamese Accounting Standards (VASs) were 

introduced, accounting practices in Vietnam still rely heavily on decisions and circulars, 

reflecting a "rules-based" approach.”These legal documents provide detailed guidance on 

the chart of accounts, recording transactions in accounting books, and presenting financial 

statements. 

In response to pressure from international economic liberalization, the accounting legal 

framework in Vietnam has undergone reform and is currently governed by the Accounting 

Law 2015 and 26 VASs. These standards cover a wide range of topics, from general 

guidance on financial reporting segmentation to more specific regulations on technical 

subjects such as calculating contingent assets and liabilities. However, despite being 

promulgated between 2001 and 2005, the VASs have not been amended or updated in line 
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with changing economic and financial conditions, and this is currently a significant issue for 

the accounting legal framework in Vietnam. 

3.2 Characteristics of the statement of financial statements in Vietnam 

Financial statements are comprehensive analyses of a company's assets, finances, business 

outcomes, ownership structure, cash flow, and profits over a certain period. Customers of 

accounting information rely on financialistatements to obtain economic and financial 

information that enables them to evaluate, analyze, iand forecast a firm's financial position 

and performance. These reports adhere to well-established accounting rules and criteria. This 

ensures that the information provided is accurate and fair. Also, financial statements are the 

most incredible tool to assess a company's financial position and performance. 

The Ministry of Finance publishes Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC, establishing the 

corporate financial reporting system. This system includes the balance sheet (Form B01-

DN), income statement (Form B02-DN), cash flow statement (Form B03-DN), and notes of 

financial statements (Form No. B09-DN).  

3.2.1 Balance sheet - Statement of financial position 

A balance sheet is a specific financial statementithat depicts the company's financial position 

at a specific time. It lists the company's assets, liabilities, and shareholders' equity using the 

accounting formula Assets are liabilities plus shareholder equity. The balance sheet is one 

of the three primary financial statements to assess a company's performance and financial 

position. It assists customers in comprehending the worth of the company's assets, financing 

sources, financial balance, liquidity, operationalicapacity, and capital structure. Typically, 

the balance sheet is created after the fiscal year, although it can be prepared anytime. It is 

separated into the asset segment and the equity section. The asset section represents the 

current and long-term worth of the firm's current and long-term assets, illustrating how the 

corporation utilizes its resources to produce revenue and value for its shareholders. The 

equity part outlines the funding sources for theiassets, including liabilities and shareholder 

equity, indicating how the firm finances its operations and expansion and distributes 

earnings to its owners. The balance sheet is crucial for financial statement analysis since it 

suggests the company's strengths and weaknesses, liquidity, and capacity to meet its 

commitments. In addition, it enables users toicompute several financial ratios that assess 

various elements of a company's performance and financial position. The debt-to-equity ratio 

measures the company's leverage. The current ratio evaluates its liquidity. The return on 

equity, which measures its profitability, is an example of these ratios. According to 
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(Paramasivan and Subramanian, 2009) and (Maynard, 2017),“the balance sheet is essential 

for evaluating a company's financial position.” 

3.2.2 Income statements - Statement of financial performance 

An income statement is a type of financial report that lists a company's income, expenses, 

and profits or losses for a given period. The income statementishows how a company is 

doing financially and helps predict how it will do in the future.iThis differs from the balance 

sheet, which offers aisnapshot of aicompany's finances at a specific time. The income 

statement can tell whether a business made a profit or a loss during a specific year by 

comparing income and expenses. It shows the company'sioperations and production results, 

which showihow well it wasidoing financially at the time. iThe income statement shows how 

a company uses capital, labor, technology, production, and business resources.  

The income statement also shows how much a company must spend to make money during 

a specific period. It is considered a moreiaccurate way to measure how wellia company has 

done and will do in theifuture than looking at how much cash comes in and goes out. Most 

of the time, the income statementihas four mainiparts: income fromibusiness and production 

activities, incomeifrom financialiactivities, income fromiother activities, income from other 

activities, iand expenses for each activity. (Robinson et al. 2009) and (Maynard, 2017) say 

that “the incomeistatement givesiessential information about a company's financial 

performance, howiwell it has used its resources and its potential for future growth.” 

3.2.3 Cash flow statement 

A financial report detailing a company's cash inflows and outflows over a given period is 

called a cash flow statement. According to (Tracy, 2014) “making this statement is crucial 

for companies to produce a thorough financial performance overview for stakeholders. Cash 

flow from operating activities,tCash flow from investingtactivities, and Cash flow from 

financing activities are the three main areas intotwhich the cash flow statement is split. The 

ending cash balance, which analysts determine by balancing the budget with the beginning 

cash balance, determines a company'sccapacity to satisfy its financial obligations. The cash 

flow statement and balance sheet have a close relationship that helps provide a complete 

picture of a financial position.tAccording to (Rodrguez-Masero & López-Manjón, 2020), 

“managers can benefit from creating cashtmanagement plans and making wise investment 

choices. Because it demonstrates how cash is generated and spent inside a firm, the cash 

flow statement is a crucial tool in financial research. 
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3.2.4 Notes to financial statements 

The notes to financialistatements are aniessential part of financial reporting since they give 

extra information to the balanceisheet, income statement, andistatement of cash flows. 

Accounting standards callifor this extra information, which helpsipeople understand 

financial data. Theinotes may alsoicontain particular information that meets both 

management requirements and accounting standards, depending on the structure and 

peculiarities of the company. This allows management to share information with 

stakeholders that it is only possible to do so partially through the financial statements. 

Thus, notes to the financial statements serve as an essential source of information for the 

users of the financial statements, including investors, creditors, and other stakeholders. 

Through detailed analyses and specific disclosures, notes to the financial statements 

facilitate a more comprehensive understanding of the enterprise's financial position, 

performance, and cash flows. 

3.3 Techniques of assessment of the financial position and performance 

One of the main goals of financial statement analysis is to determine an organization's 

operational and financial strengths and weaknesses based on theiinformation in its financial 

statements. Accordingito (Periasamy, 2010), “this means finding the essential connections 

between the parts of the financial statements.”According to (Van Horne and Wachowicz, 

2008), “the goal of financialianalysis is to evaluate an economic entity's financial position 

and determineihow it could improve its performanceithrough intelligentieconomic 

policies.”(Bernstein 1993) also says thatia company's financial situation shows how well it 

can manage capital andifinancial resources, icompete financially, and meet its obligations to 

investors, nations, and other businesses.  

As a result, financialistatement analysis uses data from the balance sheet, income statement, 

and cash flow statement to assesstan organization's performanceiand make decisions about 

the future. iFinancial statement analysis can be doneiwith a variety of tools. However, 

according to (Bernstein & Wild 2000),“ratio analysis, ivertical analysis, and horizontal 

analysis are three of theimost frequently used tools for financial statement analysis.” 

 Horizontal analysis compares financialistatement information from various reporting 

periods to evaluate an enterprise's performance overitime. The vertical study looks at each 

item's share of the financialistatementsito determine how important it is compared to other 

items. On the other hand, ratio analysis looks at the firm's liquidity, solvency, profitability, 

and efficiency by looking at its financial ratios. 
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3.3.1 Horizontal analysis 

A technique called horizontal analysis evaluatesifinancial data over a specified period to find 

trends and patterns. iIt is helpful to compare absolute and relative numbers while assessing 

the changes to financial statements likeiincome statements and balance sheets.“When 

comparing businesses, horizontal analysis is advantageous since it may show how revenues, 

expenses, assets, liabilities, and equity have changed over time.”(Hermanson et al. 1989)  

However, there are certainirestrictions and difficulties with horizontal analysis as well. For 

instance, the percentage changeicannot be determined for the next year when the base or 

preceding year contains a zero orinegative value for an item. The performance of several 

items over time may beidifficult to compare. Moreover,“the horizontal analysis does not 

consider inflation and other external factors that could alter the financial data”(Kimmel et 

al. 2018).   

Examining the link betweenirevenue growth and cost control, which impacts a company's 

profitability, is one of the critical goalsiof horizontal analysis.“Horizontal analysis may 

reveal how a company's assets, liabilities, and equity have changed over time and what the 

causes of those changes are byiexamining the balanceisheet and the income statement. This 

may be used to evaluate a company's sustainability and financial health”(Olds et al., 2016).  

The author of this thesis plans to use horizontal analysis with the year before as the base year 

to measure the changes in financial dataibetween periods. By doing this, the author will be 

able to understandibetter the direction and trend of the company's financial performance over 

time and make plans and investments for the future. 

3.3.2 Vertical analysis 

“By analyzing the relative size and percentage of differentiitems in the financial statements 

for a particular period, verticalianalysis is a method for assessing financialistatements. 

Analyzing information from the incomeistatement, the proportion of sales that go to the cost 

of goods sold (COGS) is beneficial”(Hermanson, Edwards, & Salmonson, 1989). According 

to (Kimmel, Weygandt, and Kieso,2018),“theivertical analysis may be used to compare 

current assets with current liabilities or toicompare debt to equity across time,”according to 

(Kimmel, Weygandt, and Kieso, 2018). 

According to Kimmel, Weygandt, and Kieso (2018),“there are two waysito undertake 

vertical analysis: byigenerating common-size statements for two similar unitsior preparing 

common-sizeistatements for several years of the same unit.”The financial statements each 

include an amount statedias a percentage of another number. For instance, the balance sheet's 
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vertical analysis specifies that any amount reportedishould be expressed as a percentage of 

the value of all assets. iIn contrast, the analysis of the liability side of the balance sheet 

establishes that any amount underiliabilities is defined as aipercentage of the value of all 

liabilities. Likewise, ithe income statement's vertical examination reveals that each sum is a 

sales proportion. 

According to (Ramagopal 2008),“vertical analysisimay be used to analyze the performance 

of several companies in the same industry, group, ior even variousidepartments or divisions. 

Analysts mayidetermine the advantages andidisadvantages of several firms or divisions 

within the same company by comparingithe percentages of various elements in the financial 

statements.” 

A benefit of vertical analysisiis that it makes comparing businesses of various sizes simple. 

For instance, using percentages makesiit possible to compare a more prominent firm to a 

smaller one, even when the latter's financial statements allow significant dollar numbers. iIt 

alsoiillustrates the relative importance of various financial statement elements, another 

advantage. For instance, a company may have many assets. Still, suppose they are mostly 

made up of aniinventory thatiis not selling. iIn that case, the company may be less financially 

sound than a company with fewer assets but a higher percentage of those assets in cash or 

accounts receivable. 

3.3.3 Ratio analysis 

This section focusesion assessing a company's performance by comparing it to other selected 

corporations using differentifinancial analysis tools, such as ratio analysis. The company's 

financial statements, iwhich include the income statement, balance sheet, and cash flow 

statement, are often the primary data source forithis research. Financial ratios allow us to 

learn moreiabout aicompany's performance, particularly compared to other businesses in the 

same sector.  

“Financial ratios may alsoibe used to evaluate a company's performance compared to its rivals 

or best-in-class businesses and to trackisignificant trends over time”(Alexander, 2018). It 

might be challenging toidetermine if a company's performanceiis good or bad without a 

comparison when weiemploy financialianalysis tools. Financialiratios may be used to 

compare performance measures by providing reasonable benchmarks. 

 “Activity ratios, liquidity ratios, leverage ratios, and profitability ratiosiare the four basic 

categories of financial ratios”(Paramasivan & Subramanian, 2009). Activity ratios quantify 

the efficiency with which a business generatesimoney by allocatingiits resources. The 

company’s ability to meet its short-term financialiobligations is evaluated using liquidity 
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ratios. Leverage ratios indicate howimuch a company depends on borrowing money. Last 

but not least, profitability ratios measure a business' capacity to turn a profit from its 

activities. 

Activity ratios: We may use financial ratios, which display how efficiently a firm utilizes 

and managesiits assets, to judge how welliit succeeds. These ratios, often known as activity 

ratios, show howimuch money aibusiness can produce fromiits assets. A company that 

effectively usesiits resources may generate more moneyiwith fewer resources. Nevertheless, 

if a business does not properly manage its assets, it canilose its competitive advantage, and 

potential investors will turn elsewhere.“Working capital ratios (WC ratios), which measure 

how quickly a firm can transform its current assets into cash, including inventory, 

receivables, and total asset turnover ratios”(Mitchell & Franklin, 2019).” 

The author of thisithesis will analyze a company'siactivity efficiency using the four most 

used formulas: total asset turnover, inventory turnover, receivables turnover, and equity 

turnover. 

Total asset turnover  =  
Net revenue

Average total assets
 

Inventory turnover =  
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS)

Average Inventory
 

Receivables turnover =  
 Net credit sales

Average accounts receivable
 

Equity turnover =  
Net revenue

Average Shareholder′s Equity
 

Liquidity ratios: The capacity of a firm to have adequate cash or liquid assets to pay its 

debts and avoid bankruptcy isione of the crucial elements for its existence. Profit does not 

represent the actual cash inflowsiand outflows of the firm. Hence it is insufficient to 

guarantee the company's solvency. There may be times when aibusiness must invest in less 

liquid but more lucrative assets, iresulting in a short-term trade-off between profitability and 

liquidity.“The company's long-term financial stability shouldinot be jeopardizediby this 

trade-off. However, therefore itishould beiassessed by considering otherifinancialiindicators 

andidetermining itsioptimal level of liquidity”(Michael G. McMillan, 2011). So, liquidity 

ratios are used to gauge a company's liquidity. 

Some of the most often used indicators for evaluating the company's liquidity include the 

current ratio, quick ratio, and cash ratio. 
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Current ratio =  
Current assets 

Current liabilities
 

Quick ratio =  
Current assets –  Inventories 

Current liabilities
 

Cash ratio =  
Cash +  Cash equivalents 

Current liabilities
 

Leverage ratios: When compared to other accounts on a company's balance sheet, income 

statement, or cash flow statement, leverage ratiosiare financial indicators that illustrate how 

much a company dependsion debt to finance its assets and operations. These ratios show the 

company's fundingisources (debt or equity) andiits ability to satisfy its financial obligations. 

To evaluate a company'sicapacity to repay its long-term debts, a thorough examination of 

the elements ofiits financial structure is typically necessary.“The debt-to-asset ratio, debt-

to-equity ratio, and equity-to-asset ratio are a few examples of leverage ratios”(Robinson, 

2020). 

Debt to assets ratio =  
Total debt

Total assets
 

Debt to equity ratio =  
Total debt

Total equity
 

Equity to asset ratio =  
Total equity

Total assets
 

Profitability ratios: Profitability ratios are used by analysts and investors to evaluate a 

company's capacity for profit-making inirelation to its revenue,ioperational expenses, 

balance sheet assets, and equity.iA common techniqueifor concurrentlyievaluating a 

company'sioperational effectiveness, net profit margin, asset turnover, and financial 

leverage is DuPontianalysis. Even though mostibusinessesistrive for a better return on equity 

(ROE), some sectors, suchias technology, imay have a fixed ROE because of 

competition.“Under these circumstances, businesses caniplace a higher priority on the profit 

margin or the turnover ratio rather than striving foria remarkable ROE”(Chad J. Zutter, 

2019). 

A company's profitability may be assessed using four methods: gross profit margin, net 

income margin, ireturn on equity, andireturn on assets. These ratios give investors vital 

information about the position andisuccess of a company's finances, enabling them to make 

wise investment choices. The differenceibetween the net income margin and the gross profit 

margin is the amount ofiprofitithat remains after all costs have been deducted from revenues. 
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The gross profit margin is the profit madeifrom sales after subtracting the cost of products 

sold. The ratios of the returnion equity and return on assets demonstrate how well a company 

utilizes its equity and assets to generate profits. 

Gross profit margin =  
Gross profit 

Net revenue
 𝑥 100 

Net profit margin =  
Net income 

Net revenue
 𝑥 100 

Return on assets =  
Net income

Average total assets
 𝑥 100 

Return on Equity =  
Net income

Average total equity
 𝑥 100 

In conclusion, profitability ratio analysis gives managers valuable data toievaluate a 

company'sioverall performance and financialiposition. Managersimay use this kind of 

analysis toicompare themselvesito companies in the same sector, which can help them 

forecast future financialiperformance and make moreistrategic decisions. In general, 

assessing financial statement ratiosais an essential part of learning more about a company's 

performance and finding answers to critical business problems.    

3.4 Characteristics of the ICT retail industry in Vietnam 

3.4.1 History of the Vietnamese ICT retail market 

The history of the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) market in Vietnam 

can be traced back to the 1990s when the country began to open to foreign investment, and 

the first electronic devices became available for purchase. According to a report by Vietnam 

Briefing, in the early years of the ICT market in Vietnam, the market was dominated by 

imports, and the availability of products was limited. 

However, as the country's economy grew and the middle class expanded, the demand for 

ICT products also increased. During the early 2000s, the ICT market in Vietnam started to 

overgrow as the government introduced several policies to support the development of the 

sector. According to the same report, the government invested in the development of 

infrastructure, such as highways and ports, to improve the distribution network and make it 

easier for retailers to reach customers in remote and rural areas. Additionally, the 

government also introduced measures to support the development of the local ICT industry, 

including tax incentives and investment in research and development. 
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The growing demand for digital technologies and electronic gadgets drove the growth and 

expansion of the ICT market in Vietnam in the late 2000s and early 2010s. The growth of e-

commerce also helped to drive the sale of ICT products, as it made it easier for consumers 

to purchase products online and increased competition in the market. According to a report 

by the Vietnam E-commerce and Digital Economy Agency, the e-commerce market in 

Vietnam reached a value of US$24 billion in 2020, with the majority of sales being made 

through mobile devices. 

In recent years, the ICT market in Vietnam has continued to grow, driven by the increasing 

adoption of technology in various aspects of daily life, including education, business, and 

entertainment. The market has also been supported by the growth of the country's economy 

and middle class, as well as the government's continued investment in the development of 

infrastructure and support for the local ICT industry. According to a report by the Vietnam 

Ministry of Industry and Trade, the retail ICT market in Vietnam reached a value of US$10 

billion in 2020 and is expected to continue to grow in the coming years. 

3.4.2 Reality and prospects of Vietnam's ICT retail industry 

The need for ICT products is exploding in the period of quickly evolving information 

technology, particularly in the era of Industry 4.0 and the effects of the Covid-19 epidemic. 

This has created commercial prospects for ICT product distribution and retail both 

domestically and internationally. 

The ICT market in Vietnam presents several opportunities for companies, including a large 

and growing consumer market, supportive government policies, and a rapidly developing 

digital infrastructure. Vietnam has a population of over 97 million people, and the country 

is experiencing growth in its middle class, resulting in increasing demand for technology 

products and services (Chung, 2020). Furthermore, the government has implemented 

policies to promote the development of a digital economy, such as investment in 

infrastructure, tax incentives for technology companies, and support for research and 

development (Samuel, 2021) 

According to a report by the Vietnam Ministry of Industry and Trade, the retail ICT market 

in Vietnam reportedly hit US$10 billion in 2020 and is expected to expand further in the 

next year as a result of rising demand for smartphones, laptops, and other electronic devices 

as well as the growth of e-commerce. International Data Corporation research found that the 

Vietnamese smartphone market grew by 8.1% in 2020, driven by the increasing adoption of 

technology in various aspects of daily life, including education, business, and entertainment, 

and the rise of e-commerce has helped to drive the growth of the smartphone market in 

Vietnam. Meanwhile, a report by the Vietnam E-commerce and Digital Economy Agency 

found that the e-commerce market in Vietnam reached a value of US$24 billion in 2020, 
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with the majority of sales being made through mobile devices and the growing use of e-

commerce in rural areas where retail stores are limited. 

Despite these opportunities, companies in the ICT sector in Vietnam face several challenges, 

including intense competition, limited access to financing and skilled workers, and a lack of 

domestic technology suppliers. The ICT market in Vietnam is dominated by a few large 

companies, making it difficult for smaller companies to compete (Samuel, 2021). 

Additionally, access to financing and skilled workers is limited, hindering companies' ability 

to invest in modern technology and expand their operations (Chung, 2020). The lack of 

domestic technology suppliers also adds to the cost and time required to bring new products 

to market (Samuel, 2021) 

Retail stores play a crucial role in the sale and distribution of ICT products in Vietnam. 

Several retail stores are franchises of well-known international brands, offering a wide range 

of products and services. Retail stores provide consumers with the opportunity to physically 

view and test products, receive advice and support from knowledgeable sales staff, and make 

purchases with ease (Samuel, 2021). FPT and The Gioi Di Dong are two of the largest ICT 

retailers in Vietnam, and they have a strong presence in both online and offline markets. 

Both companies offer a wide range of products, including smartphones, laptops, and other 

electronic devices, and they have a reputation for providing high-quality products and 

excellent customer service. 
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4 Practical Part 

In the next section,ithe main purpose of the thesisiis to analyze the balance sheets and 

financial statements of the two selected companies. First, the author will apply vertical and 

horizontal analysis to analyze the financial statementsiof FRT and MWG. Then the author 

will apply financial ratios to analyze and find potential financial problems in 2 selected 

companies in the ICT retail industry. 

4.1 Characteristics of FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company 

The FPT Retail Company (HOSE: FRT), also known as FPT Retail, was established in 2012 

and is a subsidiary of the FPT Corporation. FPT Retail operates in two core business areas: 

(1) Retail of technology and accessories through FPT Shop and F. Studio chains. 

• FPT Shop is a chain specializing in the retail of digital technology products, including 

mobile phones, tablets, laptops, accessories, and technology services. FPT Shop is the 

second largest retail chain in the technology market after the Mobile World chain. By the 

end of 2021, the FPT Shop chain had 647 stores (Annual report of FRT, 2021) 

• F.Studio is a high-end authorized retail chain of Apple in Vietnam, specializing in 

providing genuine Apple products and accessories (iPhone, iPad, MacBook, Apple Watch). 

FPT Retail is the first company to have a retail chain with complete Apple store models, 

including Level 1 APR (Apple Premium Reseller), Level 2 AAR (Apple Authorized 

Reseller), and iCorner. 

(2) Retail of pharmaceuticals through the Long Chau chain 

Long Chau was originally a private pharmacy chain with five stores that FPT Retail acquired 

in January 2017. However, until September 13, 2018, the FPT Pharma Joint Stock Company 

was established with equity of one hundred billion, in which FPT Retail held 75%. By the 

end of 2022, the Long Chau pharmacy chain had expanded to 678 pharmacies, specializing 

in the retail of drugs, medical equipment, cosmetics, personal care, and hygiene products, 

functional foods. 

FPT Retail, established and operating for more than nine years, has always been committed 

to the leading policy of "Customer-oriented service”. The company has been determined to 

build a customer-oriented style of operation in all business areas, old or new. Taking the 

trust of customers as the foundation for sustainable development, the company is building a 

friendly and close brand. 
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In addition, the company also values the development of a committed, professional, and 

enthusiastic team of employees. It has, is, and will continue to build many modern, direct 

product sales centers with the most uncomplicated design for customers to find and purchase 

products easily. As a subsidiary of FPT Corporation, a leading technology company in 

Vietnam, FPT Retail places a strong emphasis on technology and innovation in its operations 

and offerings, which allows it to stay ahead of the curve and offer customers cutting-edge 

products and services. 

The tireless effort and severe investment of FPT Retail have been recognized by customers 

as the number of buyers has increased significantly and remained stable in recent years. The 

company has become the leading retailer of laptops in Vietnam, ranked 2nd in mobile phone 

sales and top 4 in the country. 

4.2 Characteristics of Mobile World Investment Corporation 

Mobile World Investment Corporation (HOSE: MWG) is Vietnam's number 1 retailer and 

the only company to make it into the Top 100 leading retailers in Asia-Pacific, holding 48% 

and 38% of the mobile phone and electronics retail market share in 2019 with a network of 

over 3,000 stores nationwide. (Annual report of MWG, 2019) 

In addition, since the end of 2015, MWG has expanded into the food and consumer goods 

retail sector. The company's business activities are divided into three principal areas: (1) 

mobile phones, tablet computers, and laptops with thegioididong.com chain (TGDD); (2) 

electronics, refrigeration, and household appliances with Dien May Xanh (DMX) (including 

the Tran Anh chain); (3) food and consumer goods with Bach Hoa Xanh (BHX). In addition, 

MWG also has the BigPhone.com chain, which is a mobile device retail chain in overseas 

markets with ten stores located in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. 

At the time of its founding, MWG was one of the first companies in Vietnam to specialize 

in selling technology and electronics products. Despite the limited market demand for these 

products at the time, MWG's founders saw an opportunity to provide high-quality 

technology products to consumers in Vietnam. Over the years, the company has overgrown, 

expanding its product offerings, store network, and customer base. 

One of the key factors contributing to MWG's early success was its focus on customer 

satisfaction. From its early days, the company placed a strong emphasis on offering high-

quality products, competitive prices, and excellent after-sales support. This customer-

oriented approach helped MWG to establish a loyal customer base and quickly establish 

itself as a trusted source of technology products in Vietnam. 
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MWG continued to grow and expand in the years following its founding, and by the late 

2000s, the company had become one of the largest and most recognizable technology and 

electronics retailers in Vietnam. In addition to its focus on customer satisfaction, MWG also 

placed a strong emphasis on establishing a solid brand identity and building brand 

recognition. This focus on branding helped MWG to differentiate itself from other retailers 

and further establish itself as a leading player in the Vietnamese retail market. 

In recent years, MWG has continued to grow and evolve, adapting to changes in the market 

and expanding its product offerings to include modern technologies and products. The 

company has also invested in its online presence, establishing an e-commerce infrastructure 

that enables clients to shop online and pick up their orders at MWG stores close by. This 

comprehensive online presence has helped MWG to reach a wider audience and further 

increase its market share. 

Another factor contributing to MWG's success is its strong distribution network. With stores 

located in both urban and rural areas across Vietnam, the company has been able to reach a 

vast and diverse customer base, expanding its market share and tapping into new markets 

and segments. MWG's ability to reach a large and diverse customer base has been a critical 

factor in its success in the Vietnamese retail market. 

4.3 Financial position and performance of the FPT Digital Retail Joint 

Stock Company 

4.3.1 The financial position of FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company 

This chapter's goal is to examineiFPT Retail's financialiposition using a balance sheet 

analysis. This analysis will be presented in the practice section. First, utilizing the given data, 

the chapter will conduct a horizontalianalysis of FPT retail's total assets from 2018 to 2022. 

The main objectives of the thesis are toiexamine the alterations in total assets over time and 

identify the significantivariables that have had an influence. The remainder of the chapter 

will focus on how these modifications affect the stability and financial performance of FPT 

retail. 
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Table 4-1: Horizontal analysis Balance sheet - FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of FRT 2018-2022) 

The data in Table 4.1 shows thatithe company's assets have usually increased from 2018 to 

2022, which is consistentiwith this tendency. Despite this overall trend of growth, it is 

essential to note that there were two instances where theicompany experienced a decrease in 

assets - specificallyiby 18% and 3% in 2022 and 2020, irespectively. In contrast to these 

decreases, there was a significant increase of 100%iin the company’s assets in the year 2021. 

Upon closer examination of the data, it becomes apparent that most of these fluctuations 

occurred during the reporting period of 2021iwhen there was a substantial increase in the 

inventory item to VND 3,103,641 million - representing an increase of 169.90% (Annual 

report of FRT, 2021). To know how this growth in total assets was driven by an increase in 

inventory, one can refer to the figure providedibelow, which offers a more detailed 

illustration. 
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Figure 4-1: Graph of component change in total assets of FRT (2018-2022) 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statements, 2023) 

The growth of total assets over time seems to be significantly influenced by inventories, as 

shown by Graph 4.1. Theitotal growth in asset items throughout the study period is 

negligible. The company's business development and pronounced rise in revenue and profit 

may be blamed for the assetigrowth between 2018 and 2019 and the following doubling 

between 2020 and 2021. In the parts that follow, the author will go into further depth on this 

occurrence. 

The ICT retail industry requires a high level of inventory to ensure that goods are always 

availableiin stock. In 2021, there was a notable increase iniinventory, which can be attributed 

to a surge in demand for laptops due to remote work. Furthermore, short-term receivables 

account foria substantial portion of total assets and have gradually increased from 2018 to 

2020. The accompanyingifinancial statement notes suggest that most short-term receivables 

are from short-term loan receivables. This demonstrates that FRT participated in financial 

activities, taking outilow-interest loans from banks and lending money to other people at 

higher interest rates, whichiwas consistent with FRT's solid position in terms of collateral 

and its good standing in the market. 

The growth in short-term financial investments contributed to the rise in short-term assets 

during the COVID-19 pandemic fromi2019 to 2022. FPT Retailiinvested excess cash in 

stock market investments to take advantage of decreasing interest lending rates and an 

increase in accessible funds. In contrast, long-term assets have only slightly increased over 
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time and are insignificant compared to short-term assets. FRT's long-term assets consist of 

vehicles, warehouses, and sales management software systems. 

Figure 4.2 illustrates that FRT experienced a consistent growth trend in both equity and 

liabilities from 2018 to 2022. This growth can beilinked to the company's business expansion 

efforts, particularly the opening of more than 786 retail "FPT shop" stores, up from 533. 

Additionally, FRT's entry into the pharmacy retail industry has required a substantial 

increase in both capital and debt during the period analyzed. 

Figure 4-2: Component of Owner equity and Liabilities of FRT (2018-2022) 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

The data shows that FRT's liabilities changed in a similar way to what its current assets did. 

From 2018 to 2022, the growth rates were stable, except for some years when they went 

down. In 2021, theiliabilities increased by 100%, mainly because of more short-term 

liabilities. This is probably related to the ICT retail industry's need to keep large stocks and 

use loans to pay for them. 

FRT and its subsidiaries use bank loans that are not secured and have to be paid backiin less 

than a year as their primary sourceiof short-term liabilities. The interest rates for these loans 

depend on each loan contract and are meant to support the business capital of FRT and its 

subsidiaries. The interest rates for loansiin USD are between 1.80% and 2.67% per year, 

while the interest rates for loans in VND are between 1.90% and 4.50% per year. 
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FRT has a good reputation in the market and can get short-term loans with lower interest 

rates than the market average without giving any collateral. FRT also uses its reputation to 

make money by borrowing funds at low-interest rates and lending them at higher interest 

rates, creating profits from the gap between the two rates. This is shown in a receivables 

item for particular short-term loans that grew twice as big in 2021. 

FRT's financial stability and reputation within the market can be proven by a number of 

factors. These include the company's effective use of financial resources to generate returns 

for both it and its stakeholders. FRT's equity showed a steady growth trend throughout the 

follow-up period, except for a slight decline of 4% in 2020. Upon examining Table 4, it is 

evident that the gradual increase in equity values and retained returns can be attributed to 

FRT's issuance of ESOP shares and stock dividends at a rate of 50%, as well as cash 

payments to maintain short-term investments. 

The author observes that while the other equity in FRT's equity is just a tiny portion of the 

equity, it tends to grow steadily over time. The earnings produced by non-controlling 

stockholders are reflected in other equity. The author supports FRT's choice to issue shares 

in order to fund ESOP and dividend payments since employing income from investments 

rather than bank borrowing is a more successful technique.  

The vertical analysis method - which entails determining the percentage of each kind of asset 

in relation to the total assets - is used by the author to examine the changes in FRT's asset 

structure throughout the course of the research period. Using this method, the author is able 

to comprehend how the assets of FRT have changed over time and how this impacts the 

stability of the company's finances. 
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Table 4-2: Vertical Analysis Balance Sheet – FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on balance sheet of FRT 2018-2022) 

Current assets make up the highest proportion of FRT's total assets, ranging from 90% to 

94%, according to the vertical analysis approach used. iIn contrast, the share of long-term 

assets has not changed over time, iaccounting for between 5% and 10% of total assets. Other 

assets are tiny in comparison.iThe percentage of short-term assets to total assets has always 

been high, whichiis explained by the fact that althoughithe percentage of inventories has 

been rising, the percentage of short-term receivables has been falling, from 23% to 6%. 

During 2019, the percentage of the short-term financial portfolioiincreased, reaching a high 

in 2021, showing that FRT was successful in using surplus cash during the COVID-19 

epidemic. 
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It is worth noting that FRT's decisionito reduce short-term receivables has had a significant 

impact on the proportion of short-term assets. Thisiindicates that the company has been 

proactiveiin managing its cash flow and optimizingiits asset structure. Moreover, iFRT's 

ability to adjustiits short-term financial portfolio according to market conditions during the 

pandemic suggests thatithe company is adept at managing its financial resources to weather 

economic uncertainties. Overall, FRT's effective management of its assets and financial 

resourcesiis a testament to its financial stability and market reputation. 

Figure 4-3: Structure of Assets – FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

The asset compositioniof FRT has changed in favor of short-term assets, as is typical in the 

ICT retail industry, as shown by the diagramiin Figure 4.3. Since fixed assets like property 

and equipment do not grow at the same pace as revenue, FRT must borrow more money as 

it develops itsicompany and bringsiin more money. In order to maintain its expansion, FRT 

is dependent on short-term assets like inventories and short-term receivables. 

The author looks at the equity andiliability structure of FRTiin Figure 4.4. Liabilities make 

up a significant percentage of FRT's capital structure, even though the share of equity has 

stayed chiefly constantithroughout time, ranging fromi16% to 23% of total assets. At 80% 

of the company's liabilities, short-term debtialone shows that FRT extensively relies on 

borrowing to fund its operations and growth. 
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Figure 4-4 Structure of equity and liabilities – FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

4.3.2 Financial performance of FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company 

To begin with, the authoriintends to provide aihorizontal analysis of FRT's income 

statement, which has been gathered from theicompany's annual reports spanning the years 

2018-2022. 

Table 4-3 Horizontal Analysis Income Statement - FRT 2018 – 2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the income statement of FRT 2018-2022) 

The authoriwill begin by analyzing the first component of the income statement, which is 

revenue. According to the data presentediin Table 4.3, FRT experienced theimost vigorous 

revenue growthiin 2021 and 2022, with increases of 35% and 34%, respectively. However, 

the company experienced negative growthiin 2020 with a negative rate of -12%. This decline 
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in revenue can be attributed to the impactiof the COVID-19 pandemic, which caused the 

suspension of all economic activities iniVietnam during its initial stages. 

To gainia deeper understanding of FRT's revenue structure, the author provides a detailed 

breakdown of the company's revenue in the following figure. 

Figure 4-5: Figure of revenue structure of FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

Figure 4.5 depicts the changes in FRT's income statement over the observed period. The 

figure indicates that the sales of ICT equipment remain a significant portion of FRT's 

revenue structure. Although the company has expandediits electronics retail stores in key 

locations,iit has not achieved substantial growth in revenue from ICT retail. However, FRT 

entered the pharmacy sales segmentiin 2018 and generated its first revenue in 2019. 

Although the revenue from pharmacy salesiinitially constituted only a tiny fraction of FRT's 

revenue structure, iit increased rapidlyiin subsequent years. In 2022, revenue from pharmacy 

sales reached VND 9,596 billion, accounting for almost half of the revenue from the sales 

of ICT products (Annual report of FRT, 2022). The company quickly acquired the Long 

Chau house chainiin 2018, accelerated branch expansion across the country, and 

demonstrated FRT's strategic vision. 

The profitability section will cover the cost of goods sold (COGS) and gross profit. Financial 

revenueiincreased significantly in 2020 and 2021 when FRT lent idle money and obtained 

cheap loans, resultingiin significant profits. However, iin 2022, when the economy became 

challenging, the bankiincreased lending interest rates, and the revenue from financial 
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activities decreased by 12% compared to the previous year. Financial expenses also 

increased in 2022, mainly due to interest payments. 

Selling expenses remained stable, with a 10% increase annually for the first three years of 

observation. However, iin 2021 and 2022, iselling expenses increased by 24% and 57%, 

respectively, mainly dueito increasing staff salaries and expanding the chain. As FRT needed 

to hire more employees for new pharmacy chains, the revenue from the pharmacy sales 

segment also increased sharplyiin those two years. 

The annual increaseiin administrative expenses peaked in 2022 with a 57% increase. In 

contrast, annual revenue growth reached its peak in 2021 with a 35%iincrease. This indicates 

that the company has not efficiently controllediits administrative costs while promoting the 

coverage of pharmacy stores across the country. This highlights the challenge of optimizing 

management costs during expansion. The cost of management labor accounts for 60%-65%, 

whichiis the primary reason leading to theiincrease in corporate management costs. The 

company promoted business expansion, resultingiin an increased management apparatus. To 

increase the effectiveness of administrative expenses, the author advises FRT to upgrade its 

management structure. It isiimportant to note that FRTiis a company that makes substantial 

use of direct and indirect labor, a standard practiceiin the sector. Thus, it is crucial to reduce 

labor expenses. 

Figure 4-6: Growth figure of revenue and profit after tax of FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

Figure 4.6 shows that although FRT's net income significantly increased in 2021, it began 

to decline in 2022, with a negative growth rate ofi12%. The considerable rise in selling and 
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administrative costs, which increased at a pace comparable to the gross profit, which only 

increased by 49%,imay be used to explain this seeming contradiction. The challenging 

circumstances brought on by the Covid epidemic in Vietnam also caused FRT to have its 

most significant falliin sales and profitiin 2019 and 2020, which resultediin the suspension 

of all business operations. However, the company's entry into the pharmacy industry came 

at a high expense. As a result, in 2019iand 2020, the profit after tax decreased by 36% and 

90%, respectively. 

Table 4-4: Vertical analysis of income statement FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the income statement of FRT 2018-2022) 

A vertical examination of FRT's revenue, iwhich comes exclusively from product sales as 

well as other income and financial income, iis shown in Table 4.4. Averaging 99.5% of the 

total revenue during the lastifive years, the majority of revenue has come from the saleiof 

goods. The most significant expenditure is the cost of goods sold (COGS), which accounts 

for the majority ofioverall costs (86% on average). iThe second largest expenditure is selling 

costs, which make up about 10% of overall costs on average and tend to climb gradually. 

Administrative expenditure,iwhich make up around 3% of overall costs on average, have 

increased more slowly. COGS, on the other hand, have been falling.iThe system was not 

optimized throughout the company's growth, according to the author, which led to high costs. 

The author hasiidentified that during the company's expansion, the system was not 

optimized, resulting in considerable expenses. 

4.3.3 Selected financial analysis ratios of FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock 

Company 

This chapter concentrates on calculating and analyzing percentages. Financial ratios are 

crucialiin assessing a company's financialisituation as they provideivaluable insights into its 
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financial position, istrengths, andiweaknesses. The author has calculated several ratios 

grouped by different metrics, such as Profitability Ratio, Activity Ratio, Liquidity Ratio, and 

Leverage Ratio. 

4.3.3.1 Profitability ratio 

The profitability ratioiis a ratio used in finance to assess a company's ability to generate 

profits in comparison to its input costs. iIt evaluates how well the business usesiits capital 

to produce profits. The profitability ratios for the firm are shown in Table 4.5. 

Table 4-5: Profitability ratio on FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on financial statements of FRT 2018-2022) 

According to the dataiin Table 4.5, the profitability ratios decreased in 2020 before 

increasing once again in 2022. The gross profit margin fluctuated a little bit from year to 

year between 2018 and 2021 before peaking in 2022. 
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Figure 4-7: Profit margin of FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

The analysis of FRT's profitability reveals that the pharmacy sales segment had a significant 

impact on the company's revenue structure, leading to a surprisingly high gross profit margin 

in 2022. Despite a general increaseiin gross profit margin throughout the study period, the 

net profit margin experienced a sharp decline to 0% in 2020 before only slightly increasing 

to 1% in 2022. The assessment indicates that FRT's investment in pharmacy sales since 2018, 

coupled with theiimpact of the Covid epidemic in 2020, were the main contributors to the 

declineiin net profit margin. However, the following two years witnessed a substantial 

improvement in net profit margin, highlighting the rationale of FRT's investment strategy. 

To evaluate the profitability ratios, the author utilized the ROA and ROE indicators. 

Figure 4-8: Indicators of profitability of FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 
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FRT's strength liesiin its profitability, as evidenced by the high Return on Equity (ROE) of 

35.6% in 2018. However, this level of performance could not be sustained. In 2020, due to 

the declineiin profits, both ROA and ROE dropped to almost zero. Nevertheless, iin 2021, 

with the improvementiin profits, both ROA and ROE rebounded. 

4.3.3.2 Activity ratio 

The author will demonstrate FRT's asset management and performance in percentage terms 

in the following sub-chapter. Table 4.6 presents the precise values of the analyzed indicators 

and their trends over time. 

Table 4-6: Activity ratio of FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the financial statements of FRT 2018-2022) 

The emphasis of the analysis will switch to FRT's asset management and performanceiin the 

next section. The information is showniin percentages in Table 4.6. The asset turnover has 

decreased over the previous fiveiyears, according to the data, although there will be a slight 

increase in 2020. With a valueiof 2.63 in 2020, the asset utilization efficiency was at its 

lowest. A decrease in revenue growth and a significant loss in inventory were the leading 

causes of this decline. Theiaverage asset turnover ratio for the business indicated that it 

produced 3.07 sales for every unit of assets. 

Due to slower sales growth in 2020 and higher sales in prior years, theiequity ratio and total 

asset turnover haveibeen trending in the same direction. The firm started issuing shares to 

generate money, which caused theiequity turnover to decline gradually until 2022 when the 

pharmacy business became a substantial revenueigenerator when it reached its most 

outstanding level of 16.18%. 

Moreover, Table 4.6 reveals a decreasing trendiin inventory turnover, which could indicate 

slow sales and high financial risk forithe company. Conversely, accounts receivable turnover 

has been improving over the years, which could be attributed to the company's credit policy 

and association with a third party. 
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Overall, FRT has shown excellent financial management, efficient asset usage, and control 

over equity and debt. As the activityiratio has been declining over the last two years, it is 

possible that the businessiis acquiring an edge over its competitors. 

4.3.3.3 Liquidity ratio 

The evaluation of liquidity ratiosiis helpful in determining a company's financial situation 

andiits ability to pay offiits financial obligations. Table 4.7 displays the findings of this 

analysis, whichiincludes the current ratio, quick cash ratio, and interest coverage. The 

following section will explain each of these ratios in detail. 

Table 4-7:  Liquidity ratio of FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the financial statements of FRT 2018-2022) 

FRT maintained a current ratio of overi1.12 from 2018 to 2022, demonstrating that it has 

strongiliquidity for short-term debts and a higher ratio of short-term assets to liabilities. 

Nevertheless, because of a declineiin cash and a rise in inventory, the company's cash ratio 

has been dropping over time and reached its lowest point in 2022. Thisiimplies that FRT 

would struggle to pay offiits short-term debts, particularly in an environment with high-

interest rates and delayed receivables. 

The author believes that theiICT retail industry, whose cash flow from salesiis relatively 

liquid, iis appropriate for the quick ratio, which has an average of 0.556, a dangerous level. 

4.3.3.4 Leverage ratio 

A financial leverage ratio can be used as a toolito assess a company's risk and financial 

performance. This ratioicompares the amount of equityithat a firm has invested in its own 

assets with the amountiof debt that it has taken on to finance its operations and expansion. 

A corporation with aihigh financial leverage ratio is significantlyidependent on borrowed 

money, iwhich may boost its profitability but also increase the dangeriof default. With a low 

financial leverage ratio, a companyiis more likely to be financed by equity, which may lower 

risk while simultaneously increasing return oniinvestment. A company's ability to service its 

debt from earnings is also shown byiits financial leverage ratio. The financial leverage of 

FRT between 2018 and 2022 is shown in the following table: 
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Table 4-8: Leverage ratio of FRT 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the financial statements of FRT 2018-2022) 

Table 4.8 provides an overview of the leverageiratios and their trends. The equity structure 

was constant over theiassessment period, according to the ratioiof equity to total assets, 

which decreased slightly from 22% to 20%. Thisiratio represents the proportion of financing 

that comes fromiequity. Moreover, the debt-to-assets ratio dropped from 57% to 51%. 

At a 360% debt-to-equity ratio, FRT's debt-to-equityiratio was at its highest ever in 2021 as 

a result of a massiveiincrease in liabilities of 118.78%, primarily from short-term borrowing 

and payables to vendors. The debt-to-equity ratioigrew over time and reachedi2.62 in 2022, 

indicating that debt isimainly used toifund the company's assets. As its need for operating 

capital for business expansionirises, ithe corporation isiturning more and more toifinancial 

leverage. Althoughihaving aipositive working capital, theiliabilities are 2.62 times more than 

the equity in theiliabilitiesiand equity structure, iwhich suggests that the company may be 

subject to interest rates and financial concerns. 

4.4 Financial position and performance of Mobile World Investment 

Corporation 

4.4.1 The financial position of Mobile World Investment Corporation 

The golds of thisichapter are to provide a horizontal and vertical analysis of the balance sheet 

for the period 2018-2022. Based on theibalance sheet data, the following analysis describes 

the changes in the company's financialicondition. The completeifinancial statements for the 

five-year period are available in theiappendix. The balance sheet will be reviewed for several 

time periods thatirepresent diverse reasons and events that impacted the company's success. 

The balance sheet for 2018 through 2022 is presented in the following table. 
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Table 4-9: Horizontal Analysis MWG’s Balance Sheet 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of MWG 2018-2022) 

As shown in Table 4.9, the company's assets experienced a general growth from 2018 to 

2021, with the exception of an 11% drop in 2022. The most noticeable increases cameiin the 

reporting periods of 2019 and 2021 when theiassets climbed by a staggering 48% 2019. 

Interestingly is the fact thatithe business had no short-term financial investments in 2018 and 

no long-term debtiin 2022. This suggests that theicorporation was debt-freeiin 2022, and 

since 2019, MWG has pursuedire-borrowing strategies similar to those described in the 

preceding chapter about FRT. 

The company's cash and equivalent increased by 136% in 2020, mainly due to short-term 

deposits at banks with regulated interest rates. Conversely, cash decreased by 44% in 2017 

as the partner company withdrew short-term deposits for business purposes. 

The figure below may be used to gain complete knowledge of the primary cause of the rise 

in total assets, which is theiincrease in inventory. 
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Figure 4-9: Graph showing changes in composition of total assets of MWG 2018-2022. 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

Figure 4.9 illustrates that a large share of FRT's total assets consists of short-term assets, 

whilst long-term assets have remained reasonably steady without significant fluctuations 

over the time under consideration. Theiincrease in inventory that is difficult to identify has 

led to an increaseiin total assets over time. iIn addition, there was a significant increaseiin 

short-term financialiinvestments between 2019 and 2021. The volatility in MWG's total 

assets corresponds directly to the variation in its inventory. In 2020, when inventory was 

negative by 25%, the company's total assets grew by just 10% throughout the course of the 

fiscal year. In 2022, when both inventory and short-term financialiinvestments declined by 

13% and 29%, respectively, the company's total assets decreased by 11%. 

In addition, short-term receivables represent a significant proportion and have steadily 

climbed from 2018 to 2020. According to the notes to financial statements, the majority of 

short-term receivables are short-term loan receivables (annual report of MWG, 2022). The 

firm has conducted financial activities by borrowing at low-interest rates from banks and 

lending at higher rates. Thisiindicates that MWGiis a company with collateral as well as a 

good reputationiin the market for carrying out such transactions. The increase in short-term 

assetsiis also due to the riseiin short-term financial investments. During the COVID-19 

pandemic from 2019-2022, the company flexibly usediits surplus money to make 

investments in the stock market, taking advantage of the decline in loan interest rates and 

the increaseiin the money supply. 
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The composition of total assets has been increasing over the years, as shown in Table 4.9. 

The only thingsithat have changed considerably are cash, inventories, and short-term 

investments. The rest of the otheriitems have risen progressively. This indicates that the 

company's asset use efficiency has improved since its revenue and profit have increased 

faster than its asset size. The section on ratio analysis will go further on this aspect 

Also included in Table 4.9 are the changesiin liabilities and equity. Liabilities have 

fluctuated in proportion to current assets. The firm has expanded its store network using both 

equity and financial leverage. Bothidebt and equity have been positive throughout the 

research period. In comparison to short-term debt, ilong-term debt is minor since the firm 

has no long-term debt and employs only tiny short-term loans and financing leases owing to 

its abundant equity. Adjustmentiin long-termiliabilities is a result of fluctuations in other 

long-term obligations over time, but thisiaccount has a tiny balance. Thus, the author pays 

little attention to it. To boost its operating capital in 2022, the firm borrowed VND5,901,250 

million at a float interest rate on a long-term basis. (MWG Annual Report, 2022) 

Equity has continuously risen over the time of analysis. In 2022, however, retained profits 

were negative by 31% as a result of a stock dividend. These figures have grown over time, 

demonstrating that the company's rising revenue is the primary factor influencing its capital 

efficiency. MWGiis the leading firm in the ICT retail market in Vietnam owing to its 

substantial equity capital and lengthyihistory of growth relative to its industry competitors. 

The author has used vertical analysisito investigate the evolution of the asset structure 

through time. This approach entails representing each balance sheet item as a proportion of 

the year's total assets. The findings of this study from 2018 to 2022 are shown in the table 

below. 
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Table 4-10: Vertical Analysis of MWG’s Balance Sheet 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of MWG 2018-2022) 

Using vertical analysis to study the balance sheet for the years 2018 through 2022, we can 

observe that current assets are the most significant component of total assets. From 84% in 

2019 to 80% in 2022, the proportion of short-term assets to total assets will have fallen 

somewhat. Nonetheless, short-term investments continue to account for a significant portion. 

Additionally, over the observation period from 2018 to 2022, both short-term and long-term 

assets were generally steady. Namely, current assets account for 80% of total assets, whilst 

long-term assets account for the remaining 20%. 
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Figure 4-10: Asset structure diagram of MWG 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement,2023) 

The percentage change in assets is illustratediin Figure 4.10, illustrating a pattern in which 

the share of short-term investmentsihas grown throughout the years while the proportion of 

inventories has declined. This shows that the company has investediin warehousing and 

logistics systems and improvediits inventory management. While accumulating a large 

quantity of cash, iit does not represent a substantial part of the company's overall assets, 

showing that the cash is being used effectively. The result also reveals that cash and cash 

equivalents, as well as short-term financialiinvestments, account for 27% of MWG's total 

assets, indicating that the company's business strategyiis very successful and that it always 

has enough finances. Moreover, the company's bad debt from receivablesiis mostly from 

credit lending enterprises. 

The proportion of equity has increased over the years, while liabilities have decreased, which 

is a positive sign for the company's growth. Equity has increased through capital raising, 

stock dividends, and ESOP shares for employees (Annual report of MWG, 2020). iIn the 

previous year, liabilities accounted for 57%, with short-term debt making up 47% and long-

term debt accounting for 10%. Despite this, the company's debt repayment abilityiis vital, as 

evidenced by its decreasing debt ratio. The companyiis cautious about investing in Bach Hoa 

Xanh, whichiis still losing money. As a result, the management has gradually lowered the 

leverage to re-evaluate the business operation. 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Assets structure of MWG 

(2018-2022)

Cash and cash equivalents Short-term financial investments

Short-term receivables Inventories

Other short-term assets Long-term receivables

Fixed assets Other long-term assets



 
 

 

 

 47 

4.4.2 Financial performance of Mobile World Investment Corporation 

In this part, we will examine MWG's financial performance by examining theiitems on its 

income statement usingiboth vertical and horizontal analysis techniques. Vertical analysis 

of theiincome statement presents each line item as a proportion of total sales, allowing us to 

assess a company's cost structure and profitability. Horizontal analysis of the income 

statement is a technique that compares each lineiitem to its value in the base year, allowing 

us to spot changes and patternsiin revenues and costs over time. The table below provides a 

horizontal examination of MWG's revenue statement for the years 2018 through 2022: 

Table 4-11: Horizontal analysis Income statement of MWG 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the income statement of MWG 2018-2022) 

Table 4.11 displays the yearly changes in the income statement during the period under 

observation. Over the years 2018 to 2022, the company incurred a single loss 2022, with 

pre-tax profit decreasing by 6%. There was also a significantiincrease in costs in 2022 due 

to expensesiincurred during the liquidation of MWG. The author believes that these costs 

were a part of the restructuring campaign for the entire Bach Hoa Xanh chain from March 

to September. iIt appears that this cost was a one-time expense and will not be the same 

amountiin the next reporting period (Annual report of MWG, 2022). Therefore, instead of 

the pressure toiincrease interest rates, which would causeiinterest expenses to rise, the 

liquidation costs are the main reason for the decrease in pre-tax profit margins compared to 

the previous quarter. In contrast, the gross profit margin and net profit margin from margin 

activities haveiimproved. To better understand MWG's current revenue structure, refer to 

the figure below. 
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Figure 4-11: Graph of stores’ quantity, revenue structure, and revenue per store of 

MWG 

 

 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statements,2023) 

Figure 4.11 indicates that the number of ICT shops is decreasing while the number of stores 

selling electronic devices and food and consumer goods is increasing. The food and 

consumer goods chain has the most significant number of MWG stores, and the primary 

revenue of MWG comes from the chain of electronics stores and the chain of food and 
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consumer goods. The revenue structure of the chain selling ICT goods is gradually 

decreasing, showing that the MWG strategy is still focused on the food and consumer goods 

chain. The author notes that revenue per store must increase for profitability, but the revenue 

per store of the ICT chain is stable with no sudden changes. The company faces intense 

competition and is gradually closing inefficient stores while keeping those with optimal 

locations. The food and consumer goods segment is becoming a strategic focus for MWG in 

the coming years due to increasing revenue per store and the number of stores. 

Table 4-12: Vertical analysis of MWG 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the income statement of MWG 2018-2022) 

According to Table 4.12, ioperating revenue, on average, accounts for 99% of TotaliIncome, 

while financial activities contribute onlyi1%, but this percentage tends to increase. The table 

presents aidetailed breakdown of all costs incurred by the company from 2018 to 2022, 

indicating the percentage of total costs that each lineiitem contributes. COGS is the most 

significanticontributor, averagingi82%, but it is showing a declining trend. In contrast, 

selling expenses gradually increased and reached their peak in 2022, accounting for 16.9%. 

MWG has successfully optimized its management system, ias seen by the decrease in 

administrative costs toi1.8% by 2022. However, the author discovered that selling expenses 

had not been optimized, ileading to a decrease in MWG's gross profit margin. 

Overall, MWG isiachieving efficiencyiwith revenue and profit growth andireasonable 

controliof selling andiadministrative expenses. iHowever, ia more detailed analysis of 

financial ratios isineededifor an in-depthiunderstanding. 
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4.4.3 Selected financial analysis ratios for Mobile World Investment 

Corporation 

4.4.3.1 Profitability ratio 

Table 4.13 displays the findings of the return rates study, iwhich comprises calculations of 

several indicators like grossiprofit margin, net profit margin, return on assets (ROA), and 

return on equity (ROE). In addition toinumerical data, this part contains an analysis of the 

results. 

Table 4-13: Profitability ratio of MWG 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the financial statements of MWG 2018-2022) 

According to Table 4.13, the profit margin has changed somewhat between 2018 and 2022. 

The most significant net profit margin ever recorded was 3.98 % in 2021, butiit fell to 

3.07% in 2022. This decline was attributed to the liquidation of shops, which resulted in 

increased expenses. 

MWG has demonstrated a consistentiincrease iniits net profit margin, indicating a strong 

position in the Vietnamese retail market. This may be due to MWG's ability to offer lower 

discount rates wheniimporting its products. Additionally, the company's move into the food 

and consumer goods sector may have contributed to theiincrease in the gross profit margin. 

Despite losses in this segment, the electronics and ICT segments have been able to offset the 

costs. 

MWG was able to maintain reasonable cost control from 2018 to 2021, but there was a 

decline in profit marginiin 2020. However, the ongoing increase in gross and net profit 

margins indicates that the company is able to offset its costs in the food and consumer goods 

sector with profits from other sectors. 

The return oniassets (ROA) iand returnion equity (ROE) have decreased, indicating less 

efficient resourceiutilization. Figure 4.11igraphicallyidepicts the monitorediROA andiROE 
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Figure 4-12: Graph of MWG's profitability indicators 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statement, 2023) 

In 2018, the company achievediits highest Return on Assets (ROA) at 38.6%, butiit has since 

declined, indicating that the company is becoming less efficient in using its assets. However, 

the net profit margin has remained relatively constant at around 3%. This shows that the 

company'siinability to generate adequate income from its assets may be the cause of the 

decline in ROA. When MWGiinvests in new chains, the revenue generated does not meet 

expectations. 

Similarly, Return on Equity (ROE) also peakediin 2018 at 11.3% but has since followed the 

same declining trend as ROA. This suggests that MWGiis reducing its reliance on debt and 

increasingiits use of equity, leading to a decreaseiin ROE. Despite this, the net profit margin 

has not increased, which further contributes to the declining trend in ROE. 

4.4.3.2 Activity ratio 

In the next part, the author will use activity ratiosito explain how current assets and liabilities 

are employed by commercial companies. The particular values and trendsiof the examined 

indicators are shown in Table 4.12. 

Table 4-14: Activity ratio of MWG 2018-2022 
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(Source: Own calculation based on the financial statements of FRT 2018-2022) 

During a five-year period, theiutilization efficiency of MWG's total assets decreases 

gradually, as shown by the data in Table 4.14.iThis shows that the organizationiis using its 

assets less effectively for business operations. iIn 2022, asset turnover was at its lowest, with 

a value of 2.25, whileiin 2018, iit was at itsibest, with a value of 3.4. While the company's 

net sales have risen over time, iits growth rateiis less than that of total assets, indicating a 

declineiin asset turnover. Similar swingsiin the Total Asset Turnover and Equity Turnover 

percentages indicate that MWG primarilyiutilizes equity to supportiits business operations 

but generates little income. The lower trendiin equity turnover shows that the company's use 

of equity is becoming less efficient. 

In addition, Table 4.14 reveals a definite decreasing trend in inventory turnover, suggesting 

sluggish sales and stagnant inventory, which may enhance the company's financial concerns. 

According to MWG's financial report for the fourth quarter of 2019, 75% of the company's 

short-term assets are inventory, indicating a buildup of inventory or trouble delivering items 

to consumers. 

In contrast, the accounts receivable turnover ratio increased with time, reaching a minimum 

of 39 days of selling receivables in 2021. This development might be ascribed to the 

company's credit strategy, which allows clients to pay in installments and makes debt 

collection simpler. 

4.4.3.3 Liquidity ratios 

The measurement ofcliquidity ratios may provide insight into the financial position and 

capacity tocsatisfy the outstanding debts of acbusiness. Table 4.15 displays the outcomes of 

the examination ofcliquidity, which comprises theccurrent ratio and the quick ratio, and the 

cash ratio. The followingcsection elaborates on these results in further detail: 

Table 4-15: Liquidity ratio of MWG 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the financial statements of FRT 2018-2022) 

A summary of MWG's liquidity situation from 2018 to 2022 is presented in Table 4.13. All 

the liquidity coefficients are above 1, indicating that MWG has a solid capacity to meet its 
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debt obligations. This capacity has improved over the years from 2018 and only dropped 

slightly until 2021 (from 1.30 => 1.30 => 1.22), but in 2022 it bounced back and reached 

the highest level of 1.72. This demonstrates that MWG can maintain high debt repayment 

and low bankruptcy risk for the business. MWG invested heavily in expanding the number 

of retail stores nationwide, especially from early 2019 to late 2020, when it added nearly 

2,000 stores, so short-term debt also rose sharply during that period. However, 2019 and 

2020 were two highly challenging years due to the global pandemic and the continuous 

natural disasters in Vietnam, so the revenue growth of 2019 (18%) and 2020 (6%) was lower 

than in 2018 (30%) resulting in total short-term assets being affected. Different growthirates 

for short-term assets and liabilitiesiresulted in a modest declineiin the ratio in 2019. 

The cash ratio remains stable in the periodi2018-2022 and alternatesiwith two declines in 

2019 and 2021. Dueito the nature of theiICT retail industry, whichirequires high liquidity 

when payingishort-term debts, the company hasialways kept a highicash ratio. The author 

believes that this is aisafe cash ratio toiensure continuous uninterruptedioperation in a short 

time. 

The quick ratio progressivelyirises from 2018 to 2022. Nevertheless,cthis does not imply 

whether the company's quick ratio is favorablecor unfavorable since it relies on the 

company's typecand circumstances. A low fast ratio indicatesithat theicompany may have 

trouble makingitimely debtcpayments. The quick ratio indicates thatcMWG has a limited 

ability to meet its short-termcobligations using cash and cash equivalents (even though the 

ratio has improved from 0.2 to 0.582 over the years). This is because the company's current 

assets include acsubstantial quantity of inventory, but its cash and cash equivalents do not 

grow much, while its current liabilitiescexpand year after year, resultingcin a lower quick 

ratio. In 2020, ccompared toc2019, the quick ratio grew because the growth rate of cash and 

cash equivalents exceeded the growth rate of current liabilities. cThis was due to the COVID-

19 pandemic, which lowered MWG's need forcinventories. In response to the COVID-19 

crisis, the company had to modify its inventorycstrategy, which allowed it to grow its cash 

reserves, capture chances, decreasecexpenses, and safeguard earnings. 

4.4.3.4 Leverage ratio 

Next, the following table analyzes MWG's leverage ratio in the period 2018-2022: 
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Table 4-16: Leverage ratios of MWG 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the financial statements of FRT 2018-2022) 

A summary of the leverageiratios and their changes over time is presented in Table 4.16. 

The equity multiplier shows a gradualiincrease from 2018 to 2022, reaching its highest value 

of 0.43 in 2022. iThis indicates that the business has more financial autonomy this year 

compared to the previous years. iHowever, this value is still low, iimplying that the business 

has low financial independence as most of its assets are financed by debts. Thisiis because 

the business is expandingiits store network, experimenting with new models, enhancing its 

purchasing team, and investing iniits logistics system and supporting platforms. These 

activities require more debt to fund the assets that grow rapidlyibut at a slower rate than the 

equity-to-assets ratio tends to increase over the years. 

The debt-to-assets ratio increased from 0.25 in 2018 to 0.30 in 2022, peaking at 0.39 in 2021. 

This indicatesithat the companyiis fast developing and needsisubstantial capital. The 

company's debt, which represents a significant portion of its overall assets, is its primary 

source of income. 

In 2021, the debt-to-equity ratioipeaked at 1.21, indicating thatimore debt than equity was 

used to fund theicompany's assets; ithis ratio was slightly over one and was indicative of a 

moderate degree of financial risk. MWG's debt consistedimainly of short-term debt, which 

was primarily utilized to fundiworking capital as the company concentratedion adding new 

locations during thisitime period. Nonetheless, MWG's financial income was positive. Thus, 

the author believes that the firm increased its short-termidebt primarily to profit from the 

gap between borrowing andideposit interest rates or as a tax shield. 
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5 Results and Discussion 

Analyzing their balance sheets and income statements, the Practical section required a 

comprehensive review of MWG and FRT's financialiposition and performance. In this part, 

we will do a comparative financial and ratio study of the twoifirms in order to uncover 

possible financial issues andicrucial elements impacting their profitability and standing in 

the industry. To undertake an exhaustive examination, we williuse a variety of financial 

criteria, including liquidity, iprofitability, and leverage. By comparing MWG and FRT's 

performance using these measures, weican establish which firm is in a more vital financial 

situation. In addition, we will evaluate their present market position, market share, and 

industry trends in order toiacquire a more profound knowledge of their financial position. 

Furthermore, we williexamine the potential financial risks that both companies face, such as 

macroeconomic, regulatory, and operational risks. Byiidentifying these risks, we can 

determine how much they threaten the financial stability of MWG and FRT. 

5.1 Comparison of the financial position of Mobile World Investment 

Corporation and FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company 

Horizontal analysis of the balanceisheet reveals that covid 19 has severelyiaffected FRT's 

business, as there was no growth in assets. This had a negative impact on the ROAiand ROE, 

whichimeasure the profitabilityiof the company. However, in 2021, FRT's business 

recovered as its ICT sales resumed,iand its total assets doubled compared to theiprevious 

year. MWG, on the other hand, wasinot as severely hit by the covid 19 pandemic, as it still 

managed to increase its assets in 2020, albeit at ailower rate than before. 

In contrast to FRT, MWG was not as adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, as 

evidenced by an increase in assets in 2020, albeit not as much as the previous year. 

Additionally, the author compares the primary structure between MWG and FRT by 

analyzing changes in selectediitems in the balance sheet, such as assets, liabilities, and 

equity, as reported in the table below. 
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Table 5-1: Comparative change of a selected balance sheet item 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of MWG, FRT 2018-2022) 

According to Table 5.1, iMWG and FRT's asset structures were steady across the period of 

investigation, with short-term and long-term assets stayingiconstant and current assets 

constituting 82% and 92% of their respectiveitotal assets, respectively. MWG steadily 

decreased its percentage of short-term debtiand increased its proportion of long-term debt 

and equity, whilst FRT mainly dependedion short-term debt financing. MWG had more 

equity efficiencyithan FRT due to itsitremendous revenue increase. Due to the peculiarities 

of the ICT retail market, both firms have a preponderance of short-term assets and liabilities, 

while their long-term debt is very minimal. They also have enoughioperating cash for short-

term operations. MWG has a moreisignificant share of long-term assets than FRT, with an 

80/20 short-term asset/long-termiasset structure, while FRT's average structure is 90/10. In 

addition, FRT's debt-to-equityiratio ofi80/20 indicates that the business employs more 

financial leverage to earn profits.iMWG, on the other hand, has a debt-to-equity ratio of 

57/43. 

5.2 Comparison of financial performance of Mobile World Investment 

Corporation and FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company 

In the next part, the author willicompare the financial performance of MWG and FRT by 

tablingithe changes in the chosen incomeistatement variables, includingirevenue and net 

income: 
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Table 5-2: Comparative change in selected income statement item 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of MWG, FRT 2018-2022) 

Figure 5-1: Graph comparing revenue and revenue growth rate. 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statements 2023) 

Table 5.2 illustrates that FRT has a higher rate of revenue and profit growth. Although both 

companies experienced strong revenueigrowth from 2018 to 2022, FRT had a negative 

growth year,iwhile MWG's revenue growth rate is gradually decreasing dueito increasing 

competition inithe ICT retail industry.iFRT's revenue increased by 98% in 2021, primarily 

due to the sudden surge in demand for computers and phones. While MWG also experienced 

sudden revenue growth in 2021, iit was not significant compared to FRT, mainly because 

MWG's revenue scale is much larger, and theiICT segment's increase did not significantly 

impact MWG's revenue structure. If FRT maintains itsicurrent growth momentum, it could 

0.00

50,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

150,000,000.00

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

M
il

li
o

m
 V

N
D

Net revenue 

FRT MWG

-20%

0%

20%

40%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Revenue Growth Rate

FRT MWG



 
 

 

 

 58 

potentially dominate the marketishare of MWG and become the largest company in the retail 

ICT industry. 

In order to undertake aimore comprehensiveiexamination of MWG and FRT's financial 

performance, Figure 5.1iillustrates that in 2022, MWG's revenue was nearly five times that 

of FRT, but its profit was eight times more. Iniaddition, MWG had a more significant net 

profit margin than FRT. FRT sawimore substantial profit growth from 2018 to 2022, while 

MWG's bigger company size led toigreater total earnings. 

Additionally, to provide a more in-depthiassessment of the financial performance of the two 

companies, the author comparesitheir cashiflows in the following graph: 

Figure 5-2: Cash flow comparison between FRT and MWG 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statements, 2023) 

The graph in Figure 5.2 shows that MWG has a solid positive cash flow in general, except 

for 2019 and 2021. The significant cash flow in 2020 suggests that the business may face 

many difficulties that year. MWG maintained a positive cash flow in 2020 thanks to reducing 

the proportion of inventory and collecting cash. However, in 2021, because MWG 
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anticipated the impact of Covid, it increased the proportion of inventory, causing negative 

cash flow. To make up for the shortfall in cash flow from operating activities, MWG had to 

rely on debt leverage to supplement cash flow from financing activities. MWG invests in 

fixed assets to expand the food chain, consumer goods, and logistics system, so the cash 

flow in the period 2018-2021 is mainly poured into investment activities. Besides, MWG's 

cash flow from operating activities has always been positive throughout the study, showing 

that the company always generates profits from its core business. 

In contrast, the cash flow of FRT is not stable during the study period. Although cash flow 

reached the highest positive level in 2021, it mainly came from financial activities rather 

than from business activities. FRT has only positive cash flow from operating activities in 

2020. During the five years of observation from 2018-2022, FRT only had a positive cash 

flow from operating activities in 2020. The company's operating cash flow has been 

continuously negative over the years. In 2022, the company's operating cash flow was 

negative, up to VND 1,932 billion (Annual report of FRT, 2022). As of the end of 2022, debt 

to equity is equal to 262%, although down from 360% in 2021, but remains high. The 

company's business activities do not generate cash flow, raising concerns about the 

company's ability to repay debts, significantly when the debt burden is increasing. In the 

context of negative business cash flow and a large debt-to-equity ratio, if the company does 

not accelerate sales to collect debt payments, short-term liquidity will be at risk. Despite 

having a smaller asset size than MWG, FRT must rely on significant leverage to expand its 

business, leading to unstable cash flow. Overall, MWG is financially healthier than FRT in 

terms of cash flow. 

FRT had operating cash flow challenges while seeing aitremendous increase in sales, profit, 

and company size, whilst MWG remainediconstant. To investigate this further, the following 

financial performanceiresponse ratios will be required. 

5.3 Comparison of the results of financial analysis ratios of Mobile World 

Investment Corporation and FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock 

Company 

5.3.1 Profitability ratios 

Profitability is a crucialiindicator of financial performanceiand success. This chapter will 

analyze how the two companiesicompare in terms of their profitability ratios. The first thing 

is to look at the marginicomparison displayed in the figure below: 
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Figure 5-3: MWG versus FRT profit margin comparison 

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statements, 2023) 

The data presented in figure 5.3 indicates that MWG's net profit margin and gross profit 

margin have both surpassed FRTs, iprimarily due toithe fact that MWG has two different 

businesses thatihelp maintainiprofits alongside their electronics business. Furthermore, FRT 

suffered a sharp drop in gross profitiin 2020 because their ICT businessiwas not classified 

as a consumer staple and had to close during the COVID-19 pandemic. This resulted in the 

company not generatingisignificant profit in the fiscal year 2020 while still having to 

maintain operating costs. In contrast, MWG's consumer utility sales segment, which is 

considerediessential food sales, remained openiduring the pandemic, helping to mitigate the 

impact of COVID-19 on their gross profit. The chart also shows thatiMWG's net profit 

margin exceeds FRT, showing that FRT isinot as cost-effective as MWG. The author 

suggests that FRT shouldiimprove its profit margin further if itiwants to dominate the 

market. The subsequent study will evaluate Return on Assets (ROA) and Return on Equity 

(ROE) (ROE). 

Figure 5-4: MWG versus FRT profitability comparison  

 

(Source: Own compilation based on the financial statements 2023) 

Figure 5.4 illustrates that MWG has aihigher profitability ratio than FRT in the retail sector. 

However, iboth companies experienced a decline in ROA between 2018-2022. In 2020, 

FRT's ROE plummeted to 0.8%, indicatingithat the company faced significant challenges in 

utilizing its capital efficiently. Nevertheless, FRTimanaged to improve its ROE dramatically 

in 2021, demonstrating that its retail chain is nowioperating more efficiently than MWG's. 
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It is worth noting that FRT's higher ROE is partly due toiits use of financial leverage, as seen 

in the vertical analysis, where FRTihas total assets six times greater than its equity, while 

MWG's total assets are only three times greater than its equity. 

The profitability of MWG is the main advantage of the company, reflected in ROA and ROE 

better than FRT. This shows thatiMWG is generating adequate revenue fromiassets and 

equity. On the contrary, FRT’s ROA is lower than MWG, and ROE isionly better in the last 

two years, showingithat FRT, although optimizing resources thoroughly, has higher 

financial risk than MWG but has shown a breakthrough. 

5.3.2 Activity ratios 

Evaluation of activity ratios is a vital componentiof a company's performance analysis, and 

it is strongly tied to profitabilityianalysis. As stated in the table, the author intends to 

compare the performance ratios of MWG and FRT in this chapter. 

Table 5-3: Comparative Activity ratios of MWG and FRT 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of MWG, FRT 2018-2022) 

A comparison of FRT and MWG's activity ratios reveals that FRT utilizes its assets and 

equity more efficiently than MWG. MWG has acsubstantial amountcof assets and equity, 

which reduces its assetcand equity turnover ratios. FRT primarily engages in the ICT and 

pharmacy sales industries, which haveca greater demand and turnover than MWG's sectors. 

In 2022, FRT's Total Asset Turnover was 3,1, but MWG's was 2,3. In addition, FRT's asset 

turnover ratio has increased overctime, but MWG's has decreased, showing that FRT has 

increased its asset usage efficiency over time. 

The equity turnover ratios of both companies exhibit the same pattern. FRT's equity turnover 

ratio is more than MWG's,candiit has been growing over time, whilst MWG's has been 

declining. This indicates that FRT has produced moreiincome per unit of equity than MWG. 
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FRT also has a lower receivablesiturnover ratio than MWG, indicating thatiFRT collects or 

converts its obligationsito cash more quickly. Nevertheless, because both businesses share 

the same creditors, the danger of bad debts is minimal for both. 

Both firms have increased their inventoryiturnover percentages over time, which indicates 

that they have sold their productimore quickly and better met the demands of their customers, 

hence preventing the building of inventory capital. 

In conclusion, FRT has a superior asset utilization, equity, iand debt collection management 

performance than MWG as a resultiof its rapid revenue development and efficient financial 

management. Nevertheless, the FRT's activity rate hasigrown over the last two years, but the 

MWG's activity rate has declined throughoutithe observation period. This indicates that FRT 

may soon surpass MWG in the ICT equipment retail industry. 

5.3.3 Liquidity ratios 

The following table, Table 5.4, compares the liquidity ratios and their respective values for 

both MWG and FRT. 

Table 5-4: Comparison of Liquidity Ratios 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of MWG, FRT 2018-2022) 

Throughout the course of severalcyears, the MWG and FRT coefficients have remained 

relatively steady. An importantcconclusion is that both firms regularly maintain a current 

ratio greatercthan-1, demonstrating their capacity to paycoff short-term loans rapidly. In 

contrast, FRT's payment speed has been quicker than MWG's for the last five years, and in 

2020, both companies will havecshown progress. Little liquidity riskcensures the short-term 

viability of both companies. Nevertheless, MWG has a problemcwith a low cash ratio that 

management must continuously watch. 
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5.3.4 Leverage ratio 

The bellow table introduces a comparisoniof the leverage ratios and their calculated values 

for FRT and MWG, which will be discussed in this chapter. 

Table 5-5: Leverage Ratio Comparison 

 

(Source: Own calculation based on the balance sheet of MWG, FRT 2018-2022) 

Table 5.5 displays a comparison of the leverage ratios between FRT and MWG. FRT's 

leverage ratio is more than MWG's, indicating that FRT depends more on debt to fund its 

assets. In 2020, the whole company's debt-to-assets ratioiimproved to a safe level, but it will 

increase in 2022. iFRT's debt comprises 51% of its total assets, whereas MWG's debt only 

accounts for 30% of its total assets. FRT's debt-to-equity ratio is far greater than MWG's, 

notably in 2021, wheniit hits 360%, showing that FRT's primary source of financing is debt 

and that debt is significantly bigger than equity.iIn addition, FRT has a smaller equity-to-

asset ratio than MWG for all five years, showing that MWG has a greater degree of financial 

autonomy than FRT, despite theifact that MWG's ratio is still high. The ICT retail industry 

needs a substantial quantity of working capital. Hence the majority of enterprises in this area 

use a relatively high level of leverage. 

5.4 The most important factors affecting the profitability of Mobile World 

Investment Corporation and FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock 

Company 

Based on the analysis of the financial positioncand performance results of each company in 

section four, as well as the comparisoncof the two companies in sectioncfive, the author 

identifies the most critical factors that affect profitability from both a company and industry 

perspective, while taking Vietnam's macrocsituation into account. 

From the standpoint of the company, the first element to evaluate is the effect of selling costs 

on profitability. It iscevident in both case studiescof the chosen companies that a rise in 

selling expenditures has a direct negative impactcon gross profit margins. Secondly, changes 
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to the revenue structure mightcimpact profit margins. For instance, MWG's and FRT's sales 

of consumables and pharmaciescresulted in reduced gross profits, which had a negative 

effect on earnings. Finally, for large retailccompanies like FRT and MWG, inventory control 

is critical, mainly when inventory accountscfor a significant portion of their assets. The risk 

associated with ICT items is their short productclife cycle, and poor inventory management 

can result in an increase in the ratecof lousy inventory, leading to a decline in profits. 

From the point of view of the retail industry, especially the retail ICT industry: 

In the next ten years, Vietnam expects GDP growth of about 7% per year, according to the 

draft socio-economic development strategy for the period 2021-2030. In 2030, the GDP per 

capita in this period will reach 4,700 - 5,000 USD, on par with Thailand. In 2020, GDP per 

capita will reach 3,521 USD (Ministry of Planning and Investment, 2021). The urbanization 

rate will increase from 36% (currently) to 50%, and the proportion of modern distribution 

channels will also reach 50%, up sharply from the current 10%. Besides, e-commerce will 

also thrive, with a growth rate of about 24 %/year. These are all positive signs for the retail 

industry in the medium and long term. 

The golden population period drives shopping spending. Vietnam is still in the golden 

population period, with an annual population growth of about 1%, equal to the regional 

average (Ministry of Planning and Investment, 2011). The rapid urbanization process helps 

develop the retail market in a more modern and flexible way. In addition, with the population 

structure being mostly young people and people of working age, there is still much room for 

retail and consumption. 

Inflation and recession fears affect the purchasing power of the ICT retail industry: 

According to the author's observations, inflation affects purchasing power, forcing 

consumers to cut spending on non-essential items from the second quarter of 2022. Rising 

inflation will increase costs for retailers, as it can be challenging to translate the increased 

costs into selling prices to customers. Meanwhile, consumers are looking for deep discounts, 

and the trend to buy cheap goods can last until 2023. Under the pressure of reduced 

purchasing power due to the effects of inflation, retail businesses invest in electronics and 

technology industries such as The Gioi Di Dong and FPT Retail all recorded dismal business 

results. 

The negative net impact from the less favorable financial environment to date, the impact of 

rising interest rates, and VND depreciation against USD have been negative for most non-

essential consumer companies in the segment—author's analysis, which has a net debt 

position and is active in imports. In order to limit the negative impact, these companies are 

required to manage inventory and payments better to reduce leverage, which MWG and FRT 
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did in the third quarter of 2022. A price increase could take place coming out in the near 

future as both distributors and retailers are trying to shift the incremental cost from the 

importer to the end customer. 

Consider possible policy changes: Mobile phone demand could increase if the Government 

implements 5G or terminates 2G. This has been delayed for a while and may still need more 

time to process due to the lack of policy. Changes to ENT laws may affect the rate of new 

openings of department stores/small food and consumer goods operated by foreign 

companies (7-eleven, Family Mart, Circle K). Increasing barriers to market entry of foreign 

companies create favorable conditions for the development of domestic companies. 

AI technology: In Vietnam, AI is being applied to all industries, including retail. AI makes 

it possible for computers to learn and think like humans. Along with the ability to quickly 

search and process information, AI helps retailers serve customers better and increase sales 

conversions higher with a low cost compared to using human resources. On sales platforms, 

chatbots and virtual assistants use AI technology to understand customer questions and 

respond to simple requests in any timeframe. Along with the results of extensive data 

analysis (Big Data), AI provides predictive analytics to suggest to customers the products 

that best suit their desires, increasing sales rates for retailers. In addition, according to an 

analysis of the shopping activity of more than 150 million shoppers and 250 million visits 

to e-commerce sites (YOUNG, 2017), personalized search suggestions bring higher 

conversion rates. Specifically, the number of shoppers when searching and clicking on 

suggestions, although only 7% of visits, contributes to 26% of revenue for businesses. 

Additionally, 37% of shoppers who click on a recommendation on their first visit return 

later, showing the potential of AI in search personalization to increase sales conversions. 

5.5 Potential financial problems of Mobile World Investment Corporation 

and FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company 

In this section, the author will identify the potential financial problems of each company 

based on an analysis of the financial position and operating results of the previous section: 

5.5.1 Potential financial problems of Mobile World Investment Corporation 

Firstly, the revenue growth rate is showing signs of slowing down (8% in 2022) due to high 

competition in the industry. In 2021,ithe company had to grow its revenue, which has shown 

signs of recovery but turned to a decline in 2022. 

Second, short-term debt accounts for an absolute percentage.iIt can be seen that short-term 

debt still accounts for the absolute proportion of MWG's liability structure,imost of which 
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are short-term loans with more than 26 trillion dong.iAlthough the above short-term debt 

volume has decreasediby nearly 39% compared to 2021, short-term unsecured loans from 

banks and bonds are worth noting. In terms of finance, the author believes thatihigh short-

term debt increases the riskiof liquidity and business continuity if restructuring is not 

promoted, especiallyifor leading retail enterprises. Often face much pressure. 

Because increased inflation will negatively affect consumer spending, retail business growth 

may not be as high as previously expected. iIn addition, the profits of many leading retailers 

are also considered to have peaked, and the electronics retail market is showing signs of 

saturation; competitive pressure (from online sales) is making the margins of profits 

decrease. 

Third, Revenue barely grew, but profit after tax grew negatively. The one-time cost of 

restructuring from closing stores in 2022 will narrow BHX's loss in 2022. This will drag 

down the company's profit after tax. Moreover, the exchange rate loss due to USD debt has 

also increased because the USD/VND exchange rate has increased significantly since the 

Fed raised interest rates. Consolidated net sales may be flat, while net profit may decline in 

2023. 

5.5.2 Potential financial problems of FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Company 

First, FRT confronts thecsame difficulties as MWG in terms of poor revenue growth owing 

to industry rivalry and lower gross margins due to the sale of certain products. cIn addition, 

FRT has a high inventory ratio, with inventoryccomprising 62% of total assets, suggesting 

inefficient inventorycmanagement. This might result in a cash flow shortfall for the 

organization, particularly in adverse economic situations when the large share of inventory 

could constrain operating cash flow. 

In addition, FRT's primary concerncis cash flow, namely operational cash flow. 

Notwithstanding significant revenue, asset expansion, and profitability, net cash flow has 

been negativing over the last several years, andccash flow from operationalcactivities has 

declined, sliding intocnegative territory in 2021 and 2022. This indicates that theccompany's 

fundamental business operations do not create cash flow, and a high debt-to-equity ratio 

increases the likelihoodcof short-term liquidity issues. The corporation has employed 

financial leverage to solve this problem. However, thiscstrategy must be undertaken with 

care owing to possible dangerscin the present economic situation, where inflation is harming 

the industry. 
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5.6 Suggestions and recommendations 

Based on the potential financial problems identified in the previous section and the factors 

that have the most negative impact on profitability, the author offers some suggestions to 

help companies be selected more effectively and develop more in the future. 

5.6.1 Suggestions and recommendations for Mobile World Investment 

Corporation 

MWG, the current leader in Vietnam's ICT retail industry, faces a decline in its market share 

due to the growing competition in the country's retail sector. The company might explore 

other retail segments to diversify its revenue sources and leverage its abundant equity. 

Moreover, the company should pay attention to strict cost management, such as controlling 

new hires and replacements, adjusting employeeihours according to the actual revenue 

situation, negotiating rental costs, and relocating the premises if it results in significant 

savings. MWG should also adopt a change in its logistics operation to ensure the quality of 

goods, reduce loss and spoilageiof fresh goods, and increase gross profit margin and logistics 

performance. This would help the company to manage its business costs better. 

For new businesses, the company should assess the significant market potential but also 

consider the profitabilityiof these chains. The company should temporarily halt the 

expansion, focus on maintaining stores with positive profit margins, increasing revenue per 

store, and reducing operating costs to improve operational efficiency, minimize losses, and 

achieve a breakeven point for the whole chain. 

In 2022, BHX underwent a significant restructuring by closing stores and reorganizing 

inefficient operations, which resulted in significant losses affecting consolidated net profit. 

However, the author views this as a necessary turning point to help reshape long-term 

strategies and sustainable profitability rather than expanding scale rapidly. Because if BHX 

continues to grow aggressively without optimizing operational efficiency, it will be difficult 

for BHX to reach the breakeven point. 

5.6.2 Suggestions and recommendations for FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock 

Company 

FRT's top priority is to address its cash flow issues. To tacklecthis problem, one solution 

could be tocissue more shares to boost liquidity and reduce risks associated with the liability 

and equity structure. Moreover, theccompany's board of directors may consider partnering 

with prominent foreign investment funds in Vietnam to fulfill its capital requirements for 

expanding business activities. cThis approach could provide access to additional capital 
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sources, advanced technology, and modern managementcpractices, which is a prevalent 

trend among large firms in Vietnam. Alternatively, the management can also increase equity 

by issuing more shares. 

The author suggests that FRT has amplecinvestment opportunities due to its asset structure. 

One area for investment is upgrading the warehouse system to improveclogistics and 

productivity and reduce costs. This wouldcenable FRT to compete on price, establish a 

sustainablecfoundation for development, and gain a competitive advantage. The author 

recommends reducing the proportion of selling expenses to increase the gross profit margin. 

As the ICT industry becomes moreccrowded, the authorcbelieves that FRT's long-term 

growth prospects depend on its pharmacy sales chain, which is expected to account for more 

than 50% of total revenuecin the future. FRT's pharmacy chain appears to have an advantage 

over its competitors in terms of store opening speed and profitability. Additionally, FRT 

could diversifycits revenue streams by expandingcits product portfolio to include other 

categories within the ICT retail industry, which could increase its market share and establish 

its dominance in the industry. 
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6 Conclusion 

The purpose of my graduation thesis is to evaluate and analyze the financial situation and 

performance of FPT Digital Retail Joint Stock Companyiand Mobile World Investment Joint 

Stock Company, two companies leadingiICT retailer in Vietnam. The study uses a variety 

of techniques, such as ratio analysis, vertical and horizontal analysis, and reviewing each 

company's annual report, to uncoverisignificant financial concerns and factors affecting 

profitability. In addition to inflation, exchange rates, AIiapplications, and government 

regulations, the thesis identifies cost of goods sold variations and asset efficiency as the most 

important determinants of profitability. 

The conclusion of the study is that FRT has strong growth rate, profitability and 

attractiveness to investors but negative net cash flow and decreased growth. Despite the 

sudden increase in profits, FPT Retail's financial health and liquidity are quite worrying. In 

the context of negative business cash flow, large debt/equity ratio, if the company does not 

accelerate sales to collect debt payment, short-term liquidity will be at risk. The author 

proposes a number of options such as improving the efficiency of asset use, adjusting the 

corporate structure, expanding internationally, and issuing shares to increase equity capital. 

Although MWG is the market leader, MWG has not used its assets as efficiently as its direct 

competitor FRT, resultingiin lower profitability of assets and equityicompared to FRT. 

MWG's revenueiand profit growth rate is still slow, and the administrative costs are 

relatively large, requiring more control. Besides, financial expenses and selling expenses are 

eating away at the company's profit. In order for further improve financial efficiency in the 

coming time, MWGishould apply some more solutions such as expanding business scale and 

product consumption market, improving asset utilization efficiency and gradually 

withdrawing assets. ineffective investment. 

Overall, the study emphasizesithe importance of assessing the financial position and 

performance of companies for effective management and decision making. It suggests that 

analyzing potential problems and proposingisolutions for further development is essential 

for companies to stay ahead inithe competitive market by seizing opportunities and solving 

challenges. their finances.  
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Appendix 

Appendix 1:  Balance Sheet of MWG for the period 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Annual report of MWG for the period 2018-2022) 
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Appendix 2:  Income statement of MWG for the period 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Annual report of MWG for the period 2018-2022) 
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Appendix 3:  Balance sheet of FRT for the period 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Annual report of FRT for the period 2018-2022) 
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Appendix 4:  Income statement of FRT for the period 2018-2022 

 

(Source: Annual report of FRT for the period 2018-2022)  
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Appendix 5: Balance sheet of MWG 2021 
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Appendix 6: Income statement of MWG 2021 
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Appendix 7: Balance sheet of FRT 2021 
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Appendix 8: Income statement of FRT 2021 
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